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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

COLE THOMAS SALAZAR (1), 
VALERIE LYNN ADDISON (2), 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF: 
Title 21, U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 
841(b)(1)(C) – Distribution of Fentanyl 
Resulting in Death (Felony); Title 21, 
U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(1)(C) – 
Possession with Intent to Distribute 
Fentanyl (Felony), Title 18, U.S.C., 
Sec. 2 – Aiding and Abetting; Title 21, 
U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(1)(C) – 
Possession with Intent to Distribute 
Heroin (Felony), Title 18, U.S.C., Sec. 
2 – Aiding and Abetting; ; Title 21, 
U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(1)(C) – 
Possession with Intent to Distribute 
Methamphetamine (Felony), Title 18, 
U.S.C., Sec. 2 – Aiding and Abetting; 
Title 21, U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 846 – 
Conspiracy to Distribute Fentanyl 
(Felony) 

The undersigned complainant being duly sworn states: 

COUNT ONE 

On or about November 3, 2020, within the Southern District of California, 

defendant COLE THOMAS SALAZAR did knowingly and intentionally distribute 

a quantity of a mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of N-Phenyl-

N-[1-(2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidinyl] propanamide (commonly known as fentanyl), a 

Schedule II Controlled Substance, which resulted in the death of another person, to 

21-MJ-4726
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1 Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) San Diego Field Division (SDFD),

2 ||San Diego County Integrated Narcotics Task Force (NTF) Team 10 began an

3|| investigation into the death of S.E.F. to determine from whom S.E.F. procured the
4|| fatal dose of drugs. Based on a review of S.EF.’s cellular phone, investigators

5|| learned that S.E.F. initially communicated with SALAZAR in early August 2020 via

6 ||the "LetGo" app, now owned by "OfferUp." S.E.F. communicated by email with
7||“Jgmail.com” (believed to be utilized by SALAZAR) using subject

8 ||line “Roofing Tar.” Drug dealers often use coded language, such as “roofing tar”
9||meaning black tar heroin, in an attempt to avoid scrutiny by law enforcement.

10 Team 10 investigators obtaineda forensic downloadof S.E.F.'s cell phone. In

11 || reviewing S.EF.’s phone download, Team 10 investigators reviewed subsequent
12 ||text communications between SEF. and SALAZAR. SALAZAR was using

13 [|“TextNow” for his phone service with a telephone number ending in digits 0463

14 |from at least October 5, 2020 through November 3, 2020. Based on the continuing
15||messages between SEF. and SALAZAR, it appears as though SALAZAR was

16||supplying fentanyl and/or heroin to S.E.F. throughout that timeperiod, until the final

17|| transaction between them on November 3, 2020, which resulted in S.E.F.’s death.
18 In particular, S.EF. last communicated with SALAZAR on November 3,

19 [2020 by text message. During a series of messages on November 3, 2020,
20||SALAZAR asked S.E.F.ifshe knew anyone with money because he had “real blue

21 ||roxi 30s.” “Roxi 30s,” also known as Roxicodone 30 mg tablets, or oxycodone 30

22||mg tablets, are commonly abused Schedule II opioid pharmaceutical pills, and
23|| counterfeits of these pills often contain fentanyl instead of oxycodone and are

24||referred to as “blues,” “Roxies,” “M30,” etc. Later in the conversation, S.E.F.

25|| indicated to SALAZAR that she was dope-sick and needed drugs. SALAZAR asked
26||S.E.F., “uare talking the tickets to Fenway park the Fairy dust.” S.E.F. replied, “Yes

27
s
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3 
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6 

7 

8 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

9 II UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

10 Plaintiff, 

July 2021 Grand Jury 

Case No. 

I N D I C T M E N T 

v. 

COLE THOMAS SALAZAR (1), 
VALERIE LYNN ADDISON (2), 

Defendants. 

The grand jury charges: 

---------

Title 21, U.S.C., Secs. 841 (a) (1) 
and 841 (b) (1) (C) - Distribution of 
Fentanyl Resulting in Death; 
Title 21, U.S.C., Secs. 841 (a) (1) 
and 841 (b) (1) (C) - Possession with 
Intent to Distribute Fentanyl, 
Heroin, and Methamphetamine; 
Title 18, U.S.C., Sec. 2 - Aiding 
and Abetting; Title 21, U.S.C., 
Secs. 841 (a) (1) and 846 -
Conspiracy to Distribute Fentanyl; 
Title 21, U.S.C., Sec. 853 -
Criminal Forfeiture 

Count 1 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 On or about November 3, 2 02 0, within the Southern District of 

22 II California, defendant COLE THOMAS SALAZAR did knowingly and 

23 II intentionally distribute a quantity of a mixture and substance 

2411containing a detectable amount of N-Phenyl-N-[l-(2-phenylethyl)-4-

25 II piperidinyl] propanamide ( commonly known as fentanyl), a Schedule II 

26IIControlled Substance, which resulted in the death of another person, to 

27 11wit, S.E.F.; in violation of Title 21, United States Code, 

28 IISections 84l(a) (1) and 841(b) (1) (C). 

ADGO:nlv:San Diego:12/21/21 

'21 CR3518 CAB
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1 II Count 2 

2 II On or about January 13, 2021, within the Southern District of 

3 II California, defendants COLE THOMAS SALAZAR and VALERIE LYNN ADDISON did 

4 II knowingly and intentionally possess with the intent to distribute a 

5 !!mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of N-Phenyl-N-[1-

6 II (2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidinyl] propanamide (commonly known as 

7 llfentanyl), a Schedule II Controlled Substance; in violation of Title 21, 

8 II United States Code, Sections 841 (a) (1) and 841 (b) (1) (C), and Title 18, 

9IIUnited States Code, Section 2. 

10 II Count 3 

1111 On or about January 13, 2021, within the Southern District of 

12 II California, defendants COLE THOMAS SALAZAR and VALERIE LYNN ADDISON did 

13 II knowingly and intentionally possess with the intent to distribute a 

14 II mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a 

15 Schedule I Controlled Substance; in violation of Title 21, United States 

16 Code, Sections 841 (a) (1) and 841 (b) (1) (C), and Title 18, United States 

17 II Code, Section 2. 

18 II Count 4 

19 II On or about January 13, 2021, within the Southern District of 

20 II California, defendants COLE THOMAS SALAZAR and VALERIE LYNN ADDISON did 

21 II knowingly and intentionally possess with the intent to distribute 

221150 grams and more, to wit: approximately 60 grams of methamphetamine 

23 II (actual), a Schedule II Controlled Substance; in violation of Title 21, 

24 II United States Code, Sections 841 (a) (1) and 841 (b) (1) (C), and Title 18, 

25 II United States Code, Section 2. 

26 I I 

27 / / 

28 / / 

2 



1 

2 

Count 5 

Beginning on a date unknown to the grand jury and ending on or 

3 II about January 13, 2021, within the Southern District of California, 

4 II defendants COLE THOMAS SALAZAR and VALERIE LYNN ADDISON did knowingly 

5 Uand intentionally conspire together and with each other and with other 

6 II persons known and unknown to the grand jury to distribute a quantity of 

7 Ila mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of N-Phenyl-N-

8 II [1-(2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidinyl] propanamide (commonly known as 

9 llfentanyl), a Schedule II Controlled Substance,; in violation of 

10 II Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a) (1) and 846. 

11 II FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS 

12 II 1. The allegations contained in Counts 1 through 5 are realleged 

13 II and by their reference fully incorporated herein for the purpose of 

14 II alleging forfeiture to the United States of America pursuant to the 

15 llprovisions of Title 21, United States Code, Section 853. The property 

16 llto be forfeited includes, but is not limited to, a purple Samsung Galaxy 

17 lls9+, Model SM-G965U (IMEI 54640090646782). 

18 II 2. Upon conviction of one and more of the felony offenses alleged 

19 llin Counts 1 through 5 of this Indictment, said violations being 

20 II punishable by imprisonment for more than one year and pursuant to 

21 IITitle 21, United States Code, Sections 853 (a) (1) and 853 (a) (2), 

22 defendants COLE THOMAS SALAZAR and VALERIE LYNN ADDISON shall forfeit 

23 to the United States all rights, title and interest in any and all 

2 4 II property cons ti tu ting, or derived from, any proceeds the defendants 

25 II obtained, directly and indirectly, as the result of the offenses, and 

26llany and all property used or intended to be used in any manner or part 

27 to commit and to facilitate the commission of the violations alleged in 

28 this Indictment. 

3 



1 3. If any of the above-described f orfei table property, as a 

2 II result of any act or omission of the defendants: 

3 

4 

a. 

b. 

cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a 

5 11 third party; 

6 

7 

8 

c. 

d. 

e. 

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court; 

has been substantially diminished in value; or 

has been commingled with other property which cannot be 

9 II subdivided without difficulty; it is the intent of the United States, 

10 II pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853 (p), to seek 

11 II forfeiture of any other property of the defendants up to the value of 

12 II the property listed above as being subject to forfeiture. 

13 IIAll pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DATED: December 21, 2021. 

RANDY S. GROSSMAN 
Acting United States Attorn) 

By:~ 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

A TRUE BILL: 

-
Foreperso 
~,IA~ 
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